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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

T'o the Honorable First Selectinan and
Members of the Board of Finance
Town of Plainfield, Connecticut

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Plammfield, Connecticut (Town) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comptise the Town’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town, as of June 30, 2022, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contiained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions. '

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
aseurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstaternent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

Tn performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. -

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinjon on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or evenis, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Emphasis of Muatter
Implementation of an Accounting Standard
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Town adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The

impact of this standard increased assets for lease receivables and increased deferred inflows for
lease revenue by $204,971 at July 1, 2021.



Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
mapagement’s discussion and analysis, presented on pages 8 through 18, and required
supplementary information presented on pages 89 through 105, as listed in the table of contents,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such mnformation, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquities, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not expiess
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for-the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Plainfield, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The
supplementary information on pages 106 through 115, as listed in the table of contents, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of these basic financial
statements.

The supplementary information presented on pages 106 through 115 are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information
presented on pages 106 through 115 are faitly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December XX, 2022, on our consideration of the Town of Plainfield, Connecticut’s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Plainfield, Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in

~ considering the Town of Plainfield, Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Providence, Rhode Island
December XX, 2022



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The management of the Town of Plainfield, Connecticut (the “Fown”) offers the readers of its
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town
for the year ended June 30, 2022,

FINANCIAL HIGHIIGHTS

‘s The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $71,907,787 (net
position).

¢ The Town’s total net position increased by $727,940 during the current fiscal year.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $14,107,741, an increase of $792,285 in comparison
with the prior year.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$9,752,204 or 20.00% of the fiscal year 2022 General Fund budgetary expenditure
appropriations. Expressed another way, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
sufficient to cover 2.4 months of operating expenditures.

¢ The Town’s total long-term bonded debt (governmental and business type activities
combined) decreased by $1,605,591 or 18.57% during the current fiscal year due to current
year principal payments.

¢ The Town’s business-type activities, which consists solely of the Water Pollution Control
Anthority fund, ended the fiscal year with net position of $8,613,725, an increase of
$371,255 from the prior year. Of the total net position, $1,171,617 or 13.60% is classified
as unrestricted.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic
financial statements. The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements themselves.



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements arc designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, labilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported
as net position. Over time, increases ot decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator
of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
undetlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing or related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements are intended to distinguish functions of the

“Town that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of
the Town include activities such as: general government, public works, public safety, social
services, administration and education. The business-type activities of the Town include the
sewer operating facility.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 21 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds
of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds. :



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Governmental Ifunds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating
the Town’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
Town’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the
governmental fimds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide
a reconciliation to facilitate this compatison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The Town maintains a number of individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, which is the only
major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report,

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 through 25 of this
report.

Proprietary Funds

The Town maintains two types of proprietary funds. The Town maintains an enterprise fund
to account for its Water Pollution Control Authority which is the Town’s sewer operating
facility. It also maintains an internal service fund for the Town and Board of Education’s
participation in the Bastern Connecticut Health Insurance Program (ECHIP) self-insurance
programi.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 28 of this
report.

10



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ONTINUED)

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of retirees for pension
and other post-employment benefits, Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to the Town’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29 and 30 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to &
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 31 through 88 of this repott.

Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains

required supplementary information and combining and individual fund statements and
schedules that can be found on pages 89 through 115 of this report.

11



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position

Over time, net position may serve as one measure of a government’s financial position. The
net position of the Town totaled $71,907,787 as of June 30, 2022 and $71,179,847 as of
June 30, 2021, and is summarized as follows:

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

Govemnmental ~ Business-type
Activities Activities Total Total $ Varfance % Variance
Current and other assets § 25313960 § 1532202 % 26846,162 8§ 28186611 $ (1,340,449): -4.76%
Capital assets 62,487,033 11,151,566 73,638,599 75,865,198 (2,226,599) -2.93%
Total assets 87,300,993 12,683,768 100,484,761 104,051,809 (3,567,048 -3.43%
Deferred outflows ofresoutces 3,084,008 - 3,084,008 1,274,039 1,810,059 142.07%
Cunent and other liabilities 8,582,752 638,630 9,221,432 8,901,707 319,725 3.59%
Long-term Habilities 1422439 3,366,874 17,591,266 15,711,517 1,879,749 11.96%
Total liabilities 22,807,144 4,005,554 26,812,698 24,613,224 2,199,474 8.04%
Beferred nflows ofresources 4,783,885 64,489 4,848,374 9,532,777 (4,684,403) -49.14%,
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 58,650,594 7.442,108 66,092,702 66,656,514 {563,812) -0.85%
Restricted 592,986 - 592,986 641,543 (48,557) S157%
Untestricted 4,050,482 1,171,617 5,222,099 3,881,790 1,340,309 34.53%
Total et position § 63204062 § 8GI37 0§ T H0LT87  § TL179847  § 727,940 1.02%

Total assets of the Town at June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $100,484,761 and $104,051,809,
respectively, an decrease of 3.43%. The significant componenis of current assets and other assets

are cash, tax receivables, grant receivables, loan receivables, and claims dep

osits. Capital assets

include land, land improvements, buildings and building improvements, infrastructure,
construction in progress, and equipment. All capital assets except for land and construction in

progress are shown net of accumulated depreciation.

12



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T'OR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSYS (CONTINUED)
Net Position (Continued)

Total liabilities of the Town at June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $26,812,698 and $24,613,224,
respectively, an increase of 8.94%. Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued Habilities,
current portions of long-term liabilities and unearned revenue. Noncurrent liabilities are primarily
made up of the long-term portion of debt, accrued compensated absences, net OPEB liabilities and
net pension liabilities.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources relate to the Town’s pension and OPEB liabilities as
well as deferred outflows for charges on bond refunding and deferred inflows for loan receivables.
n 2022, the Town’s deferred outflows increased by $1,810,059 and deferred inflows decreased by
$4,684,403. These changes are the result of fluctuations in the actuarial valuations of the liabilities
and the change in the value of pension assefs.

Net position represents the Town’s equity, which is accounted for in three major categories, The
first category, net investment in capital assets, represents the Town’s equity in land, buildings and
building improvements, construction in progress, infrastructure, and equipment, net of related
accumulated depreciation and capital debt outstanding. The next net position category is restricted
net position; which occurs when constraints are placed on the assets by creditors (such as debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc. The last category is unrestricted net
position; these funds are available to use for any lawful and prudent purpose of the Town.

Unrestricted net position increased by $1,340,309, or 34.53%, for the fiscal yeat.

13



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Changes in Net Position

Changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Total $ Variance % Variance
Revenues
Programrevenues:
Charges for services $ 1630487 § 2534798 § 4165285 § 3208150 § 867,135 26.29%
Operating grants and contributions 27,618,918 - 27,638,918 24,665,923 2,672,995 12.05%
Capital grants and confributions 62,338 - 62,338 82,908 (20,570  -24.81%
(eneral revenues
Property taxes 29,711,053 - 20,711,053 29,169,054 541,999 1.86%
Grants and contributions not
1estricted to specific programs 623,871 - 623,871 636,780 {12,909) -2.03%
Untestricted investment eamings 57,05 1,550 58,565 17,726 40839 230.39%
Total revenues 59,723,682 2,536,348 62,260,030 57,870,541 4,389,480 7.50%
Program expenses: )
Education 47,840,266 - 47,840,266 42,223,808 5,616,458 13.30%
General government 3,821,189 - 3,821,189 3,730,744 90,445 2.42%
Public safety 2,985,901 - 2,985,901 1,302,205 1,683,696 120.30%
Public works 2410,385 - 2,410,385 2,089,886 320,499 15.34%
Social services 592,929 - 592,929 475,985 116,944 24.57%
Adminjstration 1,328,354 - 1,328 354 1,031,976 296,378 28.72%
Interest 182,400 - 182,400 222,300 (39,900  -17.95%
Sewer - 2,370,666 2,370,666 2,506,824 (136,158) -5.43%
Total Expenses 59,161,424 2,370,666 61,532,090 53,583,728 7,948,362 14.83%
Change in net position
before transfers 562,258 165,682 727,940 4,286,813 (3,558,873) -83.02%
Transfers (205,573) 205,573 - - - 0.00%
Change in net position $ 356685 § 371,255 0§ 727040 0§ 4286813 §  (3,558,873) -83.02%

14



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Change in Net Position (Continued)

Governmental activities increased the Town’s net position by $356,685. Business-type
activities increased the Town’s net position by $371,255.

Total revenues generated by the Town increased by $4,389,489 or 7.59% in comparison to
revenues reported in the prior year. The increase in revenues was primarily related to increases
in property tax revenues, charges for services and covid related operating grants.

Expenses incurred by the Town increased $7,948,362 or 14.83% in comparison to expenses
reported the prior year. The increase was driven by an increase in expenses due to increases in
pension and OPEB liabilities.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Town’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of the Town’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $14,107,741. Of this amount, $9,752,204 is unassigned and available
for spending at the discretion of the Town.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Towx. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $9,752,204. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 20.00% of the fiscal year 2022 General Fund
budgetary expenditure appropriations. Expressed another way, unassigned fund balance for
the General Fund was sufficient to cover 2.4 months of General Fund operating expenditures,

The fund balance of the Town’s General Fund increased by $546,028 during the current fiscal
year.

15



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The actual net change in fund balance of the General Fund on a budgetary basis was an increase
of $546,028. Expenditures were $367,919 less than budgeted and revenues were $1,358,031
more than budgeted due to favorable property tax collections and an increase in licenses,
permits and fees. See page 89 for the detailed comparison of budget versus actual for the year
ended June 30, 2022,

WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The Town adopts an annual budget for its Water Pollution Control Authority (WPCA). During
the year ended June 30, 2022 there were no additional appropriations made to the budget. The
budget for 2022 planned for no change to net position. However, the actual net change in net
position of the WPCA on a budgetary basis was an increase of $371,255. Expenditures were
$83,852 less than budgeted duc to depreciation offset by savings in interest expense and
personnel costs and revenues were $81,830 higher than expected, predominantly due to pre-
industrial treatment revenue.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Town’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 totaled $73,638,599 and
$75.865,198, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land and land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment,
and infrastructure.

The following table is a two-year comparison of the investment in capital assets:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total . $ Variance % Variance
2022 2021 2002 2021 2022 2021

Land $ 3201836 $ 320183 § L7408 3,740 % 3233576 § 3233576 § 0.00%
Buildings and

improvements 35,789,485 37,283,806 003,069 663,376 36,392,554 37,947,272 (1,554,718) -4.10%
Machinery and equipment 2,265,655 2,076,934 88,879 118,215 2,354,534 2,195,149 159,385 7.26%
Infrastructure 21,230,057 21,701,776 10,427,878 10,787,425 31,657,935 32,489,201 (831,266) -2.56%

Total 62487033 § 64264442 § 11,150,566  § 11,600,756  § 73,638,599  § 75,865,198 § (2,226,599) 2.03%

16



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT?S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED)
Long-term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had total bonded debt and notes payable
outstanding of $7,038,833. This entire amount is comprised of debt backed by the full faith
and credit of the Town. The Town’s total bonded debt decreased by $1,605,591 or 18.57%
during the current fiscal year due to current year principal payments.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the Town may issue to seven times
its annual receipts from taxation, as defined by the statutes. The current debt limitation for the

Town is significantly in excess of the Town’s outstanding general obligation debt.

The following table is a two-year comparison of long-term bonded debt:

Gavernmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totat § Vavlance % Variance
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
General obligation bonds § 3505000 § 4700000 § 3426289 § 3,756216 § 6931280 & B456216 §  (1,524927) -18.03%
Notes payable o - 107,544 188,208 107,544 188,208 (80,664} -42.86%
Total $ 3505000 $ 4,700,000 § 3,533,833 § 3944424 $ 7038833 & 8644424 §  (1,605591) -18.57%

FEcoNOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Significant estimates affecting next year’s budget that are subject to change in the near term
consist of the following:

o For purposes of calculating property tax revenues for fiscal year 2022, the Assessor’s

grand list was used along with an estimated tax rate and an estimated rate of collection,
with deductions for taxes to be paid by the State on behalf of certain taxpayers.

o Intergovernmental grants were based on estimates from the State.
o Tiis unknown how changes in market intetest rates will impact real estate activity and

related revenues collected by the Land Use Department, the Town Clerk and the
amount of conveyance taxes and interest income.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EcoNoMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES (CONTINUED)

e Building Permits were higher than prior year due to the increase volume of building
permits. Amazon electrical permit drove the building permits up due to the cost of the
permit. Interior renovations at Backus and Plainfield Square renovations are two
additional permits that drove up the building permit revenue. Beginning of FY 2022,
town clerk received a high volume of conveyance tax. When Feds raised the rate in
March, May, and June 2022. Town received more in investment interest. The Town
sold 3 lots at the Industrial Park.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Town’s budget for fiscal year 2023. The
Town’s fiscal year 2023 General Fund budget was approved on May 16, 2022. The approved
General Fund budgetary expenditure appropriation totaled $49,457,940, an increase of
$691,132 over fiscal year 2022,

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all
those with an interest in the Town’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to Kelly
Vachon, Ditector of Finance, Town of Plainfield, 8 Community Avenue, Plainfield,
Connecticut, 06374.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,149341 § 1,227,394 § 20,376,735
Receivables:
Property taxes and inferest, net 1,532,500 - 1,532,500
(irants and confracts 905,550 . 905,550
Usage charges -- 96,058 96,058
Sewer assessments - 15,850 15,850
Other 128,284 - 128,284
Loans, net 745,156 - 745,156
Inventories 215,073 - 215,073
Internal balances (141,183) 141,183 -
Total Current Assets 22,534,721 1,480,485 24,015,206
Noncurrent Assets
Sewel assessmetis - 51,717 51,711
Lease receivables 167,917 _— 167,917
Chaitns deposit 2,611,322 - 2,611,322
Capital assets not being depreciated 3,201,836 31,740 3,233,576
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 59,285,197 11,119,826 70,405,023
Total Noncurrent Assets 65,266,272 11,203,283 76,469,555
Total Assets 87,800,993 12,683,768 100,484,761
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred charges on refinding 233,587 - 233,587
Pension-related deferred outflows 2,032,610 -~ 2,032,610
OPEB-related deferred outflows 817,901 - 817,901
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,084,098 - 3,084,098

The accompanying notes are an integral pavt of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2022
Govermmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3,679,501 ¥ 156,493 § 3,835,994
Accrued inferest 72,990 61,682 134,672
Other habilities 361,294 - 361,294
Claims payable 799,000 - 799,000
Unearned revenue 2,462,324 - 2,462,324
Current portion of compensated absences 161,119 7,792 168,911
Currentt portion of general obligation bonds and notes 1,040,000 412,713 1,452,713
Current portion of capital lease obligations 6,524 -- 6,524
Total Currvent Liabilifics 8,582,752 638,680 9,221,432
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences, net 1,450,070 70,129 1,520,199
General obligation bonds and notes, net 3,023,502 3,296,745 6,320,247
Capital lease obligations, net -- - -
Net pension liability 3,285,702 - 3,285,702
Net OPEB liability 6,465,118 - 6,465,118
Noncurrent Liabilities 14,224,392 3,366,874 17,591,264
Total Liabilities 22,807,144 4,005,554 26,812,698
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred sewer assessment charges - 64,489 64,489
Deferred lease receivable 170,809 - 170,809
Deferred loans 745,156 - 745,156
Pension-related deferred inflows 33,727 . 33,727
OPEB-related deferred inflows 3,834,193 -~ 3,834,193
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,783,885 64,489 4,848,374
Net Position
Net investiment in capital assets 58,650,594 7,442,108 66,092,702
Restricted for:
Social service programs 582,986 - 582,986
Unrestricted 4,050,482 1,171,617 5,222,099
Total Net Position $ 63,294,062 § 8,613,725 % 71,907,787

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022
Nonmajor Total
Town Cares  Governmental Governmental
General Fund Act Funds Trunds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,725,582 § 2,165,587 § 2,258,172 § 19,149,341
Receivables:
Property taxes, net 1,532,500 - - 1,532,500
Grants and contracts 25,952 -- 879,598 905,550
Loans, net - - 145,156 745,156
Leases 167,917 - - 167,917
Other 128,284 - - 128,284
Due from other funds 208,390 - 17,171 325,561
Other assets 215,073 - - 215,073
Total Assets $ 17,003,698 § 2165587 $ 4,000,007 $ 23,169,382
Liabilities
Accounis payable and accrued liabilities $ 3,049,378 § - § 630,123 $ 3,679,501
Other 361,294 - - 361,294
Unearned revenue - 2,163,126 299,198 2,462,324
Due to other funds 441,406 e 25,338 466,744
Total Liabilities 3,852,078 2,163,126 954,659 6,969,863
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred loans - - 745,156 745,156
Deferred lease receivable 170,809 - -- 170,809
Unavailable revenue-property taxes and interest 1,175,813 ~~ - 1,175,813
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,346,622 - 745,156 2,091,778
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 215,073 - - 215,073
Restricted - 2,461 590,525 592,986
Committed - -- 1,709,757 £,709,757
Agsigned 1,837,721 - - 1,837,721
Unass]'_gned 9,752,204 -- e 9,752,204
Total Fund Balances 11,804,998 2,461 2,300,282 14,107,741
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of $17,003,608 § 2,165587 $ 4000097 § 23,169,382
Resources and Fund Balance

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Total Fund Balances for Governme ntal Funds

Total Net Position Reported for Governmental Activities in
the Statement of Net Position is Different Because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental
funds. Those assets consist of:

Land

Land mmprovements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Less: accunulated depreciation and amortization.
Total Capital Assets, Net

Internal service fund activity for self insurance with ECHIP is not
recorded within the povernmental funds.

Property tax revenues will be collected after year end, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures,
and therefore, are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the
governmental funds.

Long-term habilities applicable to the Town's governmental
activities are not due and payable in the current period and
accordingly are not reported as governmental fund labilities. All
liabilities - both current and long-term - are reported in the
statement of net position. Those habilities consist of:

Long-Term Debt:
Bonds and notes payable
Unamortized bond premium
Deferred amount on refunding's
Obligations under capital lease
Accrued interest payable

Other Long-Term Assets and Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension Hability
Net OPEB liability

Total Long~-Term Liabilities

Deferred outfiows and inflows of resources resulting frorn
changes in the components of the net pension and OPEB liabilities
are reported in the statement of nct position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

3

3,201,836

1,021,529
69,925,213
12,164,667
35,378,950

(59,205,162)

(3,505,000)
(558,502)
233,587
(6,524)
(72,990)

(1,611,189)
(3.285,702)

(6,465,118)

3

14,107,741

62,487,033

1,812,322

1,175,813

(15271,438)

(1,017,409)

$

63,294,062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAIL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues
Property taxes
Grants and confracts
Licenses, permits and faes
Interest

Other

Total Revenue

Expenditures

Current
General Government
Public safety
Public worles
Social services
Administration
Education

Capital outlays

Debt Service
Principal payments
Interest and other charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - Beginning, as restated

Fund Balances - Ending

Nonmajor
Town Cares Governmental Total

General Fund Act Funds Funds Governmental Funds
3 29,761,831 § -~ 8 -~ % 29,761,831
21,013,417 75,000 6,064,383 27,152,800
1,291,816 - 124,704 1,416,520
50,478 2,461 3,522 56,461
905,688 - 480,606 1,386,294
53,023,230 71,461 6,673,215 59,773,906
3,546,117 75,000 - 3,621,117
2,932,512 - 41,597 2,974,109
1,779,092 - 105,789 1,384,881
567,750 - - 567,750
1,328,354 - - 1,328,354
40,047,038 -- 6,282,033 46,329,071
693,366 - - 693,366
1,195,600 -- -- 1,195,000
182,400 - .- 182,400
52,271,629 75,000 6,429,419 58,776,048
751,601 2,461 243,796 997,858

{205,573) - - {205,573}

(205,573) - - (205,573
546,028 2,461 243,796 792,285
11,258,970 -- 2,056,486 13,315,456

$§ 11,804998 § 2461 % 2300282 § 14,107,741

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
RIECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

™Net change in fund balances - for governmental fands $ 792,285

The net position reported for governmental activities in the statement ofnet
position is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activitics the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reposted as depreciation expense. The armount by
which depreciation and amortization exceeded capital outlays in the cuxrent
peried is as follows:

Expenditures for capital assets i 679,366
Depreciation and amottization expense (2,456,776
MNet adjustment (1,777,410)

Certain revenues reported in the staternent of activities do not provide current

financial resources and, therefore, are reported as deferred inflows in the

govemmmental funds. This amount represents the change in deferred inflows

ofresources. (50,777)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial respurces to
governmental funds, while the repayment of principle on long-term debt
conswmes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. The net effect ofthese
differences in the treatment of long-term obligations is as follows:

Principle repayments:
Ronds and notes payable 1,195,000
Capital ieases 19934
1,274,934

Undet the modified acerual basis of accounting used in the governmental
fands, expenditures are not reco gnized for transactions that are not normaally
paid with expendable available financial res ources. However in the statement
ofactivities, which is presented on the accmal basis, expenses and liabilities
are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition,
interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis
of accounting until due, rather than as it acorues. Also, governmental funds
recognize the effect ofissuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items
when débt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities. The net effect of such items is as follows:

Cormpensated absences 106,650
MNet pension lability {6,228,332)
Net OPEB liability (214,651)
Amortization of deferred charge on bond refunding (61,679
Amortization of bond premiun 23,888
Accrued interest 21,200
(6,352,904)
Changes in activity for internal service fund . (172,049)

Deferred ountflows and inflows of resources resulting fromchanges in the
components ofthe net pension and OFPEB liabilities are amoxtized as a
component of pension and OPEB expense in the statement of activities. 6.642.606

Change in net position of govemmental activities 3 356,685

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activity
Enterprise Fund

‘Water Polution Internal
Control Authority Service Funds
Assets
Cmrent Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,227,394 $ -
Receivahles:
Sewer assessments 15,850 --
Usage charges 96,058 --
Claim deposits - 2,611,322
Due from other fimds 141,183 -
Total Current Assets ' 1,480,485 2,611,322
Noncurrent Assets:
Sewer assessments receivable, net of cutrent partion 51,717 -
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 31,740 --
Depreciable, net 11,119,826 -
Total Noncurrent Assets 11,203,283 --
"Total Assets 12,683,768 2,611,322
Liabilities
Current Liabilities :
Accounts payable and accrued Tabilities . 156,493 799,000
Accrued inferest 61,682 -
Conmpensated absences 7,792 -
Bonds and note payable 412,713 -
Total Current Liabilities 638,680 799,000
Noncwrvent Liabilities:
Compensated absences, net of current portion 70,129 wren
Bonds and note payable, net of current portion 3,296,743 —
Total Liabilities ' 4,005,554 799,000
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred sewer assessment charges 64,489 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 64,489 -
Net Position
Net investiment in capital assets 7,442,108 --
Unrestricted 1,171,617 1,812,322
Total Net Position 3 8,613,725 3 1,812,322

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-type Activity -

Enterprise Fund
Water Poliution Internal
Control Authority Service Funds

Operating Revenues

Charges for services $ 2,534,798  § -

Employer contributions - 7,109,482

Employee contributions — 1,777,371
Total Operating Revenues 2,534,798 8,886,853
Operating Expenses

Personnel services 995,731 -

Operations and maintenance : 806,945 .-

Fmployee benefits -- 8,882,161

Administrative expenses -- 177,295

Depreciation 449,344 -
Total Operating Expenses 2,252,020 09,059,456
Operating Income 282,778 (172,603)
Nonoperating Revemies (Expensés)

Tnterest income 1,550 554

Interest expense, net (118,646) -
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (117,096 554

(Loss) Income Before Transfers 165,682 (172,049)

Transfer in 205,573 -

Change in Net Position 371,255 (172,049)

Net Position - Begioning . B,242470 1,984,371

Net Position - Ending $ 8613725 $ 1812322

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staterents.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash I'lows From Operating Activities
Cash received for the following:
Charges for services
Cash paid for the following;
Personnel services
Operations and maintenance
Self-insurance clzims

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

Cash Flows Provided by Noncapital Finaneing Activities
Interfund activity

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal paid on capital debt
interest paid on capiial debt

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Tinanecing Activities

Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities
Interest and dividends

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Fnd of Year

Reconciliation of Operating (Loss) Tucome to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activifies:
Operating (Loss) Income

Adjustrents to reconcile operating (foss) income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Decrease (increase) in assets;
Accounts receivable
Increase (decrease} in liabifities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Compensated absences

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Business-type Activity -
Enterprise Fund

Water Pollution
Control Authority

Internal
Service Funds

3 2,499,799 § 8,805,902

(1,025,109) -
(895,663) -
- (8,896,456)
579,027 (554)

346,756 -

(410,591) -
(140,777) -
(551,368) : -~

1,550

375,965 -
851,429 -

b 1,227394 § --

$ 282,778 § (172,603)

449,344 -
(34,999) 9,049

(88,718) 163,000
(29,378) -

$ 579,027  § (554)

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these financial statements,
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022
Employee Benefit
Trust Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 484,828
Investments:

Mutual fimds 28,161,686
Total Assets $ 28,646,514
Net Position

Held in trust for employee benefits $§ 28,646,514

The accompanying notes ave an integral part of these [financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Employee Benefit
Trust Funds
Additions
Contributions:
Employer $ 1,168,862
Plan members 115,721
Other revenue 47,505
Total Contributions 1,332,088
Investment income (loss) (4,461,107
Total Additions (3,129,019)
Deductions
Benefit payments _ 1,658,613
Administrative expenses | 90,363
Total Deductions 1,748,976
Change in Net Position (4,877,995)
Net Position - Beginning _ 33,524,509
Net Position - Ending $§ 28,646,514

The accompanying notes are an integral parvt of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Plainfield, Connecticut (the “Town”) bave been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. In certain instances, summaries
of the Town’s significant accounting policies have been presented throughout the notes to the
basic financial statements in conjunction with other disclosures to which they relate.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The Town of Plainfield, Connecticut was incorporated as a town in 1699. The Town covers an
area of 42.7 square miles, and is located 49 miles east of Hartford. The Town operates under a
Board of Selectmen, Town Meeting, Board of Finance form of government and provides a full
range of services including public safety, roads, sanitation, health, social sexvices, culture and
recreation, education, planning, zoning, and general administrative services to its residents.

The legislative power of the Town is vested with the Board of Selectmen and Town Meeting.
The Board of Selectmen may enact, amend or repeal ordinances and resolutions. The Board of
Finance is responsible for financial and taxation matters as prescribed by Connecticut General
Statutes and is responsible for presenting fiscal operating budgets for Town Meeting approval.

In evaluating the inclusion of other separate and distinct legal entities as component units
within its financial reporting structure, the Town applied the criteria prescribed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Under
GASB Statement No, 61, a legally separate entity is required to be included as a component
unit if it is fiscally dependent upon the primary government and there is a financial benefit or
burden relationship present. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints
the voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (1) it is able to impose its will
on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A potential
component unit has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the primary government if,
for example, any one of the following conditions exists: '

a) The primary government is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s
reSOurces.

b) The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

¢) The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.

Through the application of GASB Statement No. 61 criteria, it is determined that a component
unit does not exist within the Town.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the Town
as a whole. They include all funds of the Town except for fiduciary funds and distinguish
between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other non-exchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties
for goods and services.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between expenses and program revenues
for each function of the Town’s governmental activities. Program revenues include a) fees,
fines and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and b)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including afl
taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the Town are organized into funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of
self-balancing accounts which constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis
is placed on major funds, each displayed in a separate column. A fund is considered major if
it is the primary operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

a) Total assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund
are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type,
and

b) Total assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
revenucs, or expenditures/expense of that individual governmental fund or enterprise
fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The funds of the Town are described below:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are used to account for operations that supply basic governmental
services. The Town uses the following types of governmental funds:

Geieral Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always classified as a
major fund. Tt is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for
and reported in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds arc used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes
other than debt service or capital projects. The Town Cares Act Fund is a special revenue
fund that is considered major in the current year. :

Capital Project Funds are used to. account for and report resources that are restricted,
conunitted, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary Funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public
(enterprise funds) or within the government (internal service funds). These activities are
financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net
income measurement similar to the private sector. Operating revenues of the Proptietary Funds
congist of customer charges for uses and services and certain other miscellaneous revenues.
All other revenues of the Proprietary Funds are considered non-operating sources of revenue.
The Proprietary Funds include Enterprise and Internal Service Funds. During the year ended
June 30, 2022 the Town maintained onc Enterprise Fund and one Internal Service Fund. The
Town uses its enterprise fund to account for its Water Pollution Control Authority activity and
uses its internal service fund to account for the self-insured medical activities of the Town and
Board of Education.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS (NOT INCLUDED IN GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS)

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held by the Town in a trustee capacity and, therefore,
cannot be used to support the Town’s own programs, The following fiduciary funds are used
by the Town:

Pension Trust Fund is used to account for resources legally held in a trust for payment
of pension benefits, and cannot be used at the Town’s discretion or to support the Town’s
general operations.

OPEB (Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust Fund is used to account for
payment of post-employment benefits that the Town provides to qualified retirees in
accordance with union contract provisions.

Md4ror AND NON-MAJOR FUNDS

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Fund Brief Description

Major:

General Fund: See above for description

Town Cares Act Fund See special revenue for description

Proprietary Funds:

Water Pollution

Control Authority Accounts for the activities of the sewer operations.

Internal Service Fund Accounts for the self-insured medical activities of the Town

and Board of Education.

34



TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
MAJOR AND NON-MAJOR FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Non Major:

Special Revenue Funds:  Grant programs including federal grants, state grants, and private
grants. The Town currenily maintains six (6) special revenue funds
which have been classified as non-major Governmental Funds. The
details of these funds may be found in the combining fund
statements in the other supplementary information section of these
financial statements.

Capital Project Funds: ~ The Town currently maintains four (4) Capital Project Funds. The
details of these funds may be found in the combining fund
statements in the other supplementary information section of these
financial statements. ~

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

On the Government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities both
governmental and business-type activities (proprietary funds) are presented using the
economic resources measurement focus as defined in item (b) below and the accrual basis of
accounting.

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus (modified
accrual) or the economic resources measurement focus (full accrual) is used as appropriate:

(a) All governmental funds utilize a current financial resources measurement focus and a
modified accrual basis of accounting. Only current financial assets, deferred outflows
of resoutces, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are generally included on
fheir balance sheets. Operating statements present sources and uses of available
spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as
their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

(b) The proprietary fund utilizes an economic resources measurement focus and accrual
basis of accounting. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the
determination of net income, financial position and cash flows. All assets and deferred
outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources (whether current
or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is
classified as net position,
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

The Government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements irnposed by the provider have been met. ‘

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when they are both measurable and available for liquidating Habilities of the current period,
“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of
the current period (usually 60 days). Revenues not considered to be available are recorded as
deferred inflows. Expenditures, including capital outlays, are recognized when a related fund
liebility has been incurred, except for those involving debt service and other long-term
obligations that are recognized when due.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, special assessments, federal impact
aid, state aid, meals and hotel taxes collected by the State on behalf of the Town, interest and
charges for services. Fines, licenses and permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash; therefore, they are recognized when
received.

Recognition of grant revenues is based on the susceptibility of accrual as determined by the
legal and contractual requirements established by each grantor. For grants not restrictive as to
specific purposes and revocable only for failure to comply with peneral prescribed
requirements, revenues are recognized when actually received. Where expenditure is the
prime factor in determining eligibility, grant revenue is reco gnized as allowable expenditures
are made provided they are collected during the year or within 60 days subsequent to year-
end. Prior to expenditure, proceeds are recorded as unearned revenues,

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes,
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expense.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUIFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
PosITION/FUND BALANCE

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the cash flow statement, all investments with original maturities of three
months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash on hand, time and demand deposits and short-term investments
maturing within three months from the date of acquisition. The Town maintains deposits in
various financial institutions, which are separately displayed in the financial statements as
“cash and cash equivalents.”

Invesiments

The Town invests in various types of investments, which are stated at fair value. Fair value is
defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses are reported as investment income. The Town’s investments are
held in the Town’s Fiduciary Funds.

Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit and
overall market volatility. Due to the level of risks associated with certain nvestment
securities, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of mvestment securities will
oceur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in
the statements of net position and activities.
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NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUIFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

In the Government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and
not yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property
taxes and intergovernmental receivables. Business-type activities report service and special
assessment fees as its major receivables. In addition, at June 30, 2022 the Town’s Sewer fund
also reported assessments receivable of $67,567.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue
accruals such as property taxes collected within 60 days of year-end and grants and other
similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and available. Non-
exchange transactions earned/measurable but not available are deferred in the fund financial
statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the Government-wide
financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund receivables consist
of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts
receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. At

June 30, 2022 the Town has estimated the allowance for doubtful accounts for delinquent taxes
of $612,898.

Property Taxes, Sewer Assessment and Usage Charges

All property tax, sewer use and sewer assessment receivables are shown net of an allowance
for uncollectible accounts. The allowance is calculated based upon historical collections and
analysis of creditor’s ability to pay,

Property taxes are assessed as of October 1. Taxes for real estate and personal property taxes
are due in two installments on July 1 and the following January 1. Motor vehicle taxes are
payable on July 1 and supplemental motor vehicle taxes are payable on January 1. Liens are
effective on the assessment date and are continued by filing before the end of the year following
the due date. Assessments for real and personal property, excluding motor vehicles, are
computed at 70% of the market value.

Upon completion of projects, sewer assessments are levied and assessed to the users each June.
Usage charges are billed semi-annually in July and January for flat rate fees for connections.
Assessments and user charges are due and payable within thirty days and delinquent amounts
are subject to inferest at prevailing rates. Liens are filed on all properties until the assessment
1s paid in full.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/ANFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Prepaids

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid assets. Prepaids vecorded in governmental-type funds do not reflect
current appropriated resources and, as such are reported as non-spendable fund balance.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventory consists primarily of
materials and supplies. Inventory maintaiped in governmental funds is recorded as
expenditures at the time of purchase.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed in governmental funds.

Certain unexpended and unencumbered appropriations for incomplete projects are carried over
to succeeding years. Such continuing appropriations are accounted for similar to
encumbrances. Other unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

Capital Assels

The accounting treatment over capital assets depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietaty fund operations and whether they are reported in
the Government-wide or fund financial statements.

In the Government-wide financial statements, long-lived assets are accounted for as capital
assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is
unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value
at the date of donation.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets (Continned)

Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or
more and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that
do not add to value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net
Position. Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The ranges of estimated useful lives by type of asset are as follows:

Asset Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Infastructure 75
Distribution and collection systems 50-65
Machinery and equipment 5-20

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for in the same manmer as in the
Government-wide statements.

The Town reviews the carrying value of its long-lived assets to ensure that any impairment
issues are identified and appropriately reflected in the financial statements. Should the
expected cash flows be less than the carrying value, an impairment loss would be reco gnized
to reduce the carrying value. There were no impairments reported as of June 30, 2022.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OQUIFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)
!

Bond Preminms and Issuance Cosis

In the Government-wide statement of net position, bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the term of the related bonds using the straight-line method. Bond
premiums are presented as an addition to the face amount of the bonds payable. Bond issuance
costs are expensed iti the year incurred.

Tn the governmental funds, bond premiums and issuance costs are treated as period costs in the
year the bonds are issued. Bond issuance costs are included in debt service expenditures and
bond premiums are reflected as other financing sources in the governmental funds financial
statements, while discounts are reported as other financing uses.

Long-term Obligations

In the Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations (including compensated absences, and accrued claims and judgements)
are reported as labilities in the statement of net position.

In the governmental fund financial statements, long-term debt is recognized as a Hability of a
governmental fund when due. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to
be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund Hability of a
governmental fund. The face amount of debt issued is reported as-other financing sources in
the governmental funds financial statements.

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of various contracts and policies, Town employees are granted vacation and
sick leave based on length of service. The Town’s policy is to recognize the cost of vacation
and sick leave in governmental funds when paid and on the accrual basis in proprietary funds.
The amount of earned but unpaid vacation and sick leave is recorded as a long-term obligation
in the Government-wide financial statements. :

Judgments and Claims

Liabilities for legal cases and other claims against Governmental funds are recorded when the
ultimate liability can be estimated and such cases are expected to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources. Proprietary fund types record these liabilities using the accrual
basis of accounting.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED QUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

- Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate section represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that later date. At June 30, 2022 the Town
reported $2,850,511 of deferred outflows of resources related to pension and OPEB in the
Government-wide statement of net position. A deferred outflow of resources related to pension
or OPEB results from differences between expected and actual experience, changes in
assumptions or other inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in pension expense in a
systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining
service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the pension plan (active
employees and inactive employees). In addition, at June 30, 2022 the Town also reported
$233,587 of deferred outflows related to deferred charges on refundings in the Government-
wide statement of net position. The deferred charge on refunding is the unamortized balance
of the difference between the carrying value of the refunded debt and the new debt. This

amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or the refunding
debt. .

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate section represents the
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and therefore will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until a later date. At June 30, 2022 the Town reported
$3,867,920 of deferred inflows of resources related to pension and OPERB in the Government-
wide statement of net position. A deferred inflow of resources related to pension or OPEB
results from differences between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or
other inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in pension/OPEB expense in a
systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining
service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the pension and OPEB
plans (active employees and inactive employees). The town also showed a deferred inflow
related to lease receivables of $170,809.

At June 30, 2022 the Town also reported in the Government-wide statement of net position
$64,489 of deferred inflows related to deferred sewer assessments and $745,156 of deferred
imflows related to deferred loans.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

AsseTs, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND Ner
POSTTION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Deferred Ouiflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

At June 30, 2022 the Town also had an item qualified as a deferred inflow of resources in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The unavailable tax revenue of $1,175,813 at June 30, 2022
represents property taxes ceceivables which are assessed on October 31, 2019 and prior and
are not collected within 60 days of June 30, 2022.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the Town have been classified and reported
as follows: '

Reciprocal interfund activities:

s Tnterfind loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and interfund
payables in borrower funds.

= TInterfund services are reported as revenues in the seller find and as expenditures or
expenses in the purchasing fund.

Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

Tnterfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing uses in the
funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers.
In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after nonoperating revenues and expenses.

= Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the fund responsible for particular
expenditures or expenses to other funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements
are not displayed separately within the financial statements.

Transactions between funds have been eliminated in the Government-wide financial
statements but fully presented within the governmental fund of financial statements with no
elimination made between or within funds.

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year is refetred to as either “due from/to other funds” (current portion)
or “advances from/to other funds” (noncurrent portion). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due from/to other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
Government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FOND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Net Position/Fund Balance
Government-wide Financial Statements

Net position is classified and displayed in the following three components:

(a) Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, notes, or other borrowings, and deferred inflows of resources, if any, that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets, increased by
deferred outflows of resources related to those assets, if any.

(b) Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either
by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

(¢) Unrestricted net position — the remaining net position that does not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.

Proprietary fund net position is classified the same as in the Government-wide statements.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements :

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Ralance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions, fund balance is classified as non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned,
or unassigned. These categories are defined below:

* Non-spendable — amounts that cannot be spent because they are either a) not in spendable ‘
form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact, “Not i spendable
form” includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash within one year,

v Restricted ~ includes amounts that are restricted for specific purposes. Fund batance is
reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments,
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUIFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NEeT
POSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

n  Committed ~ Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the Board of Selectman, with the Board of Finance approval
(the highest levels of decision making authority of the Town) and cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the Town removes or changes the specified use by taking the same
formal action.

»  Agsigned — Amounts are constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for specific purposes,
but are not restricted or committed. Amounts may be constrained to be used for a specific
purpose by a governing board or body or official that has been delegated authority to assign
amounts by the Town Charter and in accordance with the Town’s adopted Fund Balance
Policy (Town Finance Director).

» Unassigned — Residual classification for the General Fund or amounts necessary in other
governmental funds to eliminate otherwise negative fund balance amounts in the other four
categories. '

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts
to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the Government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in
which the resources are considered to be applied.

The Town does not have a formal policy over net position. In practice, the Town considers
restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.
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NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED QUIFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
PoSITION/FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

PENSIONS

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows or resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the retirement system and additions/deductions from the system's
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
retirement system,

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSTONS (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB [ability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPER expense, have been determined by
an actuarial valuation conducted by the Town and are accounted for in accordance with the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting Jor
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB).

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Town adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The
impact of this standard increased assets for lease receivables and increased deferred inflows for
lease revenue by $204,971 at July 1, 2021. See restatement Note 15, There was no significant
impact on these financial statements from the implementation of additional accounting
standards,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December XX, 2022, which is the date
these financial statements were available to be issued. As of this date, there are no events
requiring recognition or disclosure into these financial statements.

USE or ESTIMATES

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and expenses during the reporting
period. Significant items subject to such estimates include the pension and the other
postemployment benefit liability. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2 — CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

CASH DEPOSITS

A reconciliation of the Town’s cash and cash equivalents per the financial statements as of
June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Government-wide statement of net position:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,376,735

Statement of fiduciary net position:
Cash and cash equivalents 484,828

Less: cash equivalents considered mnvestments
for disclosure purposes (13,460,102}
Net cash deposits : $ 7,401,461

CASH DEPOSITS — CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town will not be able to
recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
Tune 30, 2022, $602,037 of the Town’s bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk as -

Tollows:
Uninsured and uncollateralized 3 602,037
Uninsured and coliateralized 7,089,365

$ 7,691,402

All of the Town’s deposits were in qualified public institutions as defined by Connecticut state
statute. Under this statute, any bank holding public deposits must at all times maintain,
segregated from its other assets, eligible collateral in an amount equal to 2 certain percentage
of its public deposits, The applicable percentage is determined based on the banl’s risk-based
capital ratio. The amount of public deposits is determined based on either the public deposits
reported on the most recent quarterly call report, or the average of the public deposits reported
on the four most recent quarterly call reports, whichever is greater. The collateral is kept in the
custody of the trust department of either the pledging bank or another bank in the name of the

pledging bank.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 2 — CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS
A reconciliation of the Town’s investments as of June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Statement of fiduciary net position:

Investments $ 28,161,686
Plus: cash equivalents considered investments for disclosure purposes 13,460,102

$ 41,621,788

Interest Rate Risk

The Town’s investment policy limits its exposure to fair value losses arising from changes in
interest rates by structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open
market prior to maturity, and investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities,
money matket mutual funds, or similar investment pools. The pension plan’s policy strives for
a balanced return on investments to limit its exposure to fair value losses by providing long-
term return opportunities through an allocation of the funds discussed above. In addition, the
plan strives to meet cash requirements for benefit payments,

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generall , the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of ifs fair value to changes in market interest rates. Information about the exposure
of the Town’s investments to this risk using the segmented time distribution model is as
follows: '
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCYAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2022

NOTE 2 - CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investment
Matwities
(In Years)
Investment Type Valuation Basis  Credit Rating Value Less Than 1

Governmental activities:
Connecticut Short-term Investment Fund  Net Asset Value AAA $ 12,567,015  § 12,567,015
Business-type activities

Comnecticut Short-term Investoent Fund  Net Asset Value AAA 408,259 408,259
Fiduciary
Money Matket Mutnal Fund Net Asset Value  Unrated . A84.828 484,828
$ 13,460,102 13,460,102
Other Investments:
Fiduciary.
Mutual funds Fair Value _ 28,161,686

$ 41,621,788

Because the investments in money matket mutual funds and the State of Connecticut’s Short
Term Tnvestment Fund (STIF) have weighted average maturities of less than 90 days, they are
presented as investments with maturities of less than one year.

Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by assignment of a rating by a

nationally recognized rating organization, U.S. government securities or obligations explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk exposure.
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TOWN OF PLAINF IELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 2 — CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The Town has no investment policy that would further limit ifs investment choices beyond
those limited by Connecticut state statues. Connecticut state statues permit the Town to jnvest
in obligations of the United States, including its instrumentalities and agencies; in obligations
of any state or of any political subdivision, authority or agency thereof, provided such
obligations are rated within one of the top two rating categories of any recognized rating
service; or i obligations of the State of Connecticut or of any political subdivision thereof,
provided such obligations are rated within one of the top three rating categories of any
recognized rating service. The pension and Other Post Employment Benefit Trust Funds may
also invest in certain real estate mortgages, in certain savings banks or savings and loan
associations, or in stocks or bonds or other securities selected by the trustee, with the care of a
prudent investor. The Town’s investment policy for its pension and OPEB fund is intended to
provide long-term total return opportunity through an allocation between 50% and 70% of
equities and between 30% and 5S0% of fixed income investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town does not have a policy for
custodial credit risk. The Town’s investments in external investment pools, mutual funds and
group annuity contracts are not evidenced by securities and are therefore not exposed to
custodial credit risk. Investments in equity securities are uninsured and unregistered, with
securities held by the counterparty, but not in the Town’s or pension fund’s name. The Town’s
investments in mutual funds are not evidenced by securities and are therefore not exposed to
custodial credit risk.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 2 — CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Town’s investment policy generally restricts investments in any one issuer that is in excess
of 10%. In addition, the Town’s policy defines other limitations in an effort to avoid incurring
unreasonable inherent risk of over-concentration in specific instruments, individual issuers or
maturities. As of June 30, 2022, more than 10% of the Town’s fiduciary investments are
invested in the following:

% of Fiduciary
Issuer Tnvestment Value Investments
Fidelity Fidelity 500 Index Fund $ 7,453,766 26.47%

NOTE 3 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants, as of the measurement date.
Authoritative guidance establishes a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques reflect assumptions other market participants would use
based upon market data obtained from independent sources (also referred to as observable
inputs). The Town classifies its assets and labilities measured at fair value into level 1
(securities valued using quoted prices from active markets for identical assets), Level 2
(securities not traded on an active market for which market inputs are observable, either
directly or indivectly, and Level 3 (securities valued based on unobservable inputs).
Investments are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. The Town’s financial assets that are accounted for at fair value
on a recutting basis as of June 30, 2022, by level within the fair value hierarchy are presented
in the table below:

Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Unobservable
Financial Assets Marlcet Inputs Inputs
Measured at Fair Value {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Mutual fimds $ 28,161,686 $ - 8 -- 5 28,161,686
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES
LoANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable represents loans disbursed from Community Development Block Grants
(“*CDBG”) and Economic Development Committee proceeds. The loans are noninterest
bearing and payment is due only a) in the event of default, which is upon the death of borrower,
b) transfer of title of property or ¢) refinancing property-related debt. Loans receivable consist
of the following as of June 30, 2022

Loans receivable $ 745,156
Less deferred loans (745,156)
Total $ --

LEASE RECEIVABLE

The Town is reporting Leases Receivable of $167,917 at June 30, 2022. For 2022, the Town
reported lease revenue of $37,054 related to lease payments received. These leases are
summarized as follows:

Lease Lease
Lease Receivable Revernue
Sprint Spectrum, LP $ 167917 % 37,054

Sprint Spectrum, LP - On April 16, 2002, the Town entered into a lease agreement with Sprint
Spectrum, LP, for the lease of a cell tower that is part of the Town. Based on this agreement,
the Town is receiving monthly payments through June 2027, There are renewal options
included in this lease agreement.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022 consisted of
the following:

Beginning Ending
Balance Inoreases Decieases Balance
Governmental Activities
(apital assets, not being depreciated:

Fand $ 3201836 § -~ § - § 3,201,836
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 3,201,836 - - 3,201,336
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvetnents 1,021,529 - - 1,021,529

Buildings and improvements 69,925,213 -~ = 69,925,213

Machinery and equipment 11,485,301 693,366 (14,000 12,164,667

Infastructure 35,378,950 - - 35,378,950
Tota} capital assets, being depreciated 117,810,993 693,366 (14,000) 118,490,359
Less accunulated depreciation for:

Land improvements (1,021,529} - - {1,021,529)

Buildings and improvements (32,641,318) (1,494,411) - (34,135,729)

Machinery and equipment {9,408,368) (490,645) - {9,899,013)

Infastructure (13,677,172) (471,719) -~ (14,148,891)
Total accunmiated depreciation (56,748,387) ___(2:456,779) - (59,205,162).

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 61,062,606 (1,763,409) (14,000) 59,285,197

Governmental activities capilal assets, net ~ $ 64,264,442 $ (1,763409) § (14,000} § 62,487,033
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Education $ 1,744,434
Public safety 85,978
Public works 601,184
Social services 25,179
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 2,456,775

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2022 consisted of
the following:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $  3L,740 § - % - § 31740
Total capital assets, being depreciated 31,740 - - 31,740
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 2,713,818 - - 2,713,818

Machinery and equipmen 1,121,362 - - 1,121,362

Infastructure 24,431,052 e e 24431 052
Total capital assets, being depreciated 28,266,232 - ~ _28266,232
Less accumulated depreciation and amortizatoin for:

Buildings and improvements (2,050,441) (60,307) - (2,110,748)

Machinery and equipment (1,003,147 (29,336) - (1,032,483}

Infastructure (13,643,628) (359,547) - (14,003,175)
Total accumulated depreciation and amortization (16,697,216) (449,190) - {17,146406)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 11,569,016 {449,190) - 11,119,826
Business-type activities capital assets, net S1L600756  § (449,190) § - $11,151,566
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 6 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLE
Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Funds Due From Due To

Governmental Funds
Dog Fund $ - $ 5,914
School Lunch Fund 87,425 -
Construction Fund o 19,424
General Fund ' 208,390 441,406
School Project Fund 29,746 -
325,561 466,744
Business-type Activities
Water Pollution Control Fund 141,183 -
Total due fronvto other finds $ 466,744 $ 466,744

All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in
the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

NOTE 7 — INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Tnterfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Funds Transfer In Transfer Out
Governmental Funds
General Fund $ -~ $ 205,573
Business-type Activities
Water Pollution Control Fund 205,573 -
Total due from/to other finds $ 205,573 $ 205,573

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) use unrestricted
reverues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in fon

2022;

Governmental Activities
(eneral obligation bonds
Unamortized bond premium

Total bonds and note payable

Other Habilities:
Capital leases
Compensated absences
Net pension liability (asset)
Net OPERB liabifity

Total governmental activities

Business-type Activities
General obligation honds
USDA bonds payable
Clean Water notes payable
Unamortized bond premium

Total bonds and notes payable
Other liabilities:
Compensated absences

Total business-type activities

g-term liabilities for the year ended June 30,

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balnce One Year

§ 4700000 $ -~ 8 (L,1950000 $ 3,505,060 § 1,040,000
582,390 s (23,888) 558,502 -
5,282,390 - (1,218,888) 4063502 1',040,000
86,458 - {79,934} 6,524 0,524
1,717,839 691,396 (798,046) 1,611,189 161,119
(2,942,630 6,228,332 - 3,285,702 -
6,250,467 214,651 - 6,465,118 --
$10394524  $7134379 (2096368)  $ 15432035 ¢ 1,207,643
$ 3600000 3% - 5 (280,000)  § 3320000 §$ 280,000
156,216 - (49,927) 106,289 52,049
188,208 - (80,664) 107,544 80,664
190,678 - (15,053) 175,625 -
4,135,102 - (425,644) 3,700,458 412,713
107,209 22,546 (51,924) 71921 7,792

§ 4242400 $ m546  § (d77568) $ 378713719 § 420,505
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 8 -- LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Bonps AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Year Ending June 30, | Principal Interest Total

Goverpmental Activities:

2023 $ 1,040,000 § 138450 $§ 1,178,450

2024 1,045,000 91,525 1,136,525

2025 1,100,000 37,900 1,137,900

2026 320,000 5,200 325,200

$ 3,505,000 § 273,075  § 3,778,075
Business-Type Activities:

2023 | 412,713 125,873 538,586

2024 361,120 111,161 472,281

2025 280,000 97,544 377,544

2026 280,000 92,594 372,594

2027 275,000 78,203 353,203

2028-2032 1,375,000 192,800 1,567,800

2033-2034 550,000 65,655 615,655

$ 3,533,833 § 763,830  §. 4,297,663

Authorized, Unissued Bonds

The amount of authorized, unissued bonds at June 30, 2022 totaled $86,265 for general

purposes, $2,494,805 for school purposes, and $1,697,994 for sewer purposes.

Legal Debit Limit

Connecticut General Statues Section 7-374(b) provides that authorized debt of the Town shall
not exceed seven times base receipts. Further, the Statute limits the amount of debt that may
be authotized by the Town for general purposes, schools, sewers, urban renewal and pension
deficit. The Town did not exceed any of the statutory debt Himitations at June 30, 2022,
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
CAPITAL LEASES

A summary of assets under capital leases as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Governmental

Activities
Equipment $ 469,693
1 ess: accurnulated amortization 319,017
$ 150,676

Depreciation expense relative to leased property under capital leases totaled $66,010 for the
year ended June 30, 2022 and is included in depreciation expense disclosed in Note 5.

Future minjmum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments
as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Governmental
Activities -
Year Ending June 30:
2023 : $ 6,524
Total mininum lease payments 6,524
Less: amount representing interest -
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 6,524
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 9 — FUND BALANCE

The various components of fund balance at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Nonmajor
General Town Cares Governmental
Funds Act Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Prepaids / inventories $ 215,073 % -~ 8 -
Restricted for:
Social services - 2461 138,929
Education - - 451,596
Conunitted for:
Public safety ' - -- 57,235
Capital improvements e -- 902,655
Education o - 749,867
Assigned to:
Trucks and vehicles 305,795 - -
Revaluation 34,637 - -
Capital itprovements 630,952 -- -
Dow Road Bridge 350,000 -- -
Education 516,337 -~ -
Unassigned 9,752,204 - -~

$ 11,804,998 $ 2,461  § 2,300,282

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Plan Description
Plan Administration — The Town administers a retirement plan (the “Plan”) a single-employer

contributory, defined benefit plan. Benefit terms may be established and amended by the Town
and the collective bargaining unit.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Plan Membership — Under the plan, all full-time members of the Police Department who are
members of the bargaining unit are eligible for benefits. In addition, new employees of the
Town who have completed 2 years of bargaining agreement, nurses, custodians, secretaries,
bus drivers and paraprofessionals, who became eligible on July 1, 1995 with service credited
for periods after Fuly 1, 1984, are cligible for benefits.

The Plan is closed to employees of the Police Department hired after November 27, 2012 and
employees of the Highway Department hired after October 16, 2012,

The Plan consisted of the following as of the date of the latest actuarial valuation of July 1,
2021:

Inactive plan merrbers or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 151
Tnactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 121
Active plan members 120

392

Benefits Provided — The Plan provides retitement benefits for Police employees calculated at
2% to 7/1/2004 and 2.5% after 7/1/2004 of the average of the annual salaries, excluding
overtime, commissions, bonuses, ctc., of the highest 3 years of employment multiplied by
service. For all other employees, the retirement benefit is calculated at 1.2% of the average of
the annual salarics, excluding overtime, commissions, bonuses, etc., of the highest 3
consecutive years of employment, multiplied by service. Participants (except Police) are 10%
vested for each year of service.

Contributions — The Town establishes contribution rates based on an actuarially determined
rate recommended by an independent actuary. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Town is required to
contribute the actuarially determined rate. Police participants are required to contribute 7% of
their base monthly earnings. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town contributed
$1,072,000 or 18.14% of covered annual payroll.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting — The Plan is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting,
Revenues (contributions and investment income) are recognized when they are earned and
expenses (benefits, administration and refunds) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the Plan. Liabililies are recorded when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the Plan. Administrative costs of the Plan are funded by the Plan.

Investments - investments are reported at fair value, except for investments in participating
mterest earning investment contracts, recorded at amortized cost, and certain external
investment pools, recorded at net asset value.

Investment policy — Connecticut state statutes permit the Town to invest in obligations of the
United States, including its instrumentalities and agencies; in obligations of any state or of any
political subdivision, authority or agency thereof, provided such obligations are rated within
one of the top two rating categories of any recognized rating service; or in obligations of the
State of Connecticut or of any political subdivision thereof, provided such obligations are rated
within one of the top three rating categories of any recognized rating service. The Pension
Trust Funds may also invest in certain real estate mortgages, in certain savings banks or savings
and loan associations, or in stocks or bonds or other securities selected by the trustee, with the
care of a prudent investor. The Town’s investment policy for its pension fund is intended to
provide long-term total return opportunity through an allocation between 50% and 70% of
equities and between 30% and 50% of fixed income investments.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
‘NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Concentrations — As of June 30, 2022, more than 10% of the Town’s Plan investments are
invested in the following:

_ 4 of Plan
{ssuer Investment Value Investments
Fidelity Fidelity 500 Index Fund $ 7,453,766 2647%

Rate of return — For the year ended June 30, 2022 the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expenses, was ~13.59%. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense adjusted
for the changing amounts actually invested.

The components of the net pension liability of the Town Plan as June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Total pension fability $ 30,880,844
Plan fiduciary net position 27,595,142
Town's net pension liability - Town Plan $ 3,285,702

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 20.36%
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NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability

The components of the change in the net pension liability of the Town Plan for the year ended

June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

‘Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liabitity Net Position Liability
Balance as of July 1, 2021 $ 29467226  $ 32409856 § {2,942,630)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 506,959 - 506,959
Interest 1,896,685 - 1,896,685
Changes of benefit terms 451,858 - 451 858
Differences between expected and
actual experience 236,748 -- 236,748
Changes of assumptions {64,387) - (64,387)
Contributions - employer - 1,072,000 (1,072,000)
Contributions - employee -- 115,720 (115,720)
Net investment loss - {4,387,899) 4,387,899
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,614,245) (1,614,2435) --
Administrative expense -~ (290) 290
Net changes 1,413,618 (4814,714) 6,228,332
Balance as of June 30, 2022 $ 30,880,844 % 27595142  § 3,285,702

Actuarial assumptions — The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of July 1, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included

in the measurement:
Inflation 2.40%
Salary increases, including inflation 2.00%
Investment rate of return. 6.50%
Discount rate 6.50%
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NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 general mortality table projected to the valnation
date with Scale MP-2021.

5

The long-tetm expected rate of return on pension plan investment was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of retura
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the
following table: '

Long-term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Retuen

Fixed Income 22.80% 0.44%
Fixed Income High Yield 2.00% 4.05%
Global 5.00% -0.10%
US Large Cap 33.00% 4.47%
S Small Cap 5.50% 4.96%
Tnternational Developed 22.00% 6.50%
International Emerging Markets 8.50% 8.90%
Commodities 0.80% 0.15%
REITs 0.40% 3.91%

100.00%
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NOTE 10 ~ EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.5%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed fhat plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that the Town’s contributions
will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate. For this purpose, only employer contributions that are intended to fund
benefits of current plan members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer
contributions that are intended to fund the service costs of future plan members and their
beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions from fixture plan members, are not included.
Based on those assurmptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members, Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of retirn on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivily of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate — The following presents
the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the discount rate of 6.5%, as well as
what the Town’s net pension Hability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower (5.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.5%).

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
5.50% 6.50% 7.50%
Town's plan net pension liabifity $ 6,612,893 § 3285702 $ 474,103

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense related to the Town

Plan of $925,933. At June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to the Town Plan from the following sources:
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NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Deferred Qutflows  Deferred Inflows
 of Resources of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ 1,908,599 § -
Changes of assumptions -~ (33,727)
Differences between expected and actual experience 124,011 -
Total $ 2,032,610 § (33,727)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the Town plan will
be recognized as a component of pension expense in future years as follows:

Year ended June 30,
- 2023 $ 440,960
2024 A r 228,206
2025 33,541
2026 1,296,176

$ 19983883

Payable to the Town

The Town does not have a reported payable liability to the Town Plan as of June 30, 2022.
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NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Plan Description

The faculty and professional personnel of the Town’s Board of Education participate in the
Teachers” Retirement System (“TRS™), which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan that provides retirement disability, survivorship and health insurance
benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The TRS is governed by Connecticut General
Statue (“CGS”) Title 10, Chapter 167a and is administered by the Connecticut State Teachers’
Retirement Board (the “Board™). The TRS is included as a fiduciary pension trust fund in the
State of Connecticut’s Comprehensive Annval Financial Report and the Board issues publicly
available financial reports.

Beneht Provisions

The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Employees are eligible to retire at
age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited service
including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Normal Retirement. Retirement benefits for the employees are calculated as 2.0% of the
average ammual salary times the years of credited service (maximum benefit of 75.0% of
average annual salary during the 3 years of highest salary). In addition, amounts derived from
the accumulation of the 6.0% contributions made prior to July {, 1989 and voluntary
confributions are payable.

Early Retirement: Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service with a minimum of
20 years of Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited service with a minimum
of 15 years of Connecticut service. Benefit amounts are reduced by 6.0% per year for the ficst
5 years proceeding normal retirement age and 4.0% per year for the next 5 years preceding
normal retirement age. Effective July 1, 1999, the reduction for individuals with 30 or more
years of service is 3.0% per year by which retirement precedes normal retirement date.
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NOTE. 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM ( CONTINUED)
Benefit Provisions (Continued)

Minimum Benefit; Effective January 1, 1999, Public Act 98-251 provides a minimum monthly
benefit of $1,200 to teachers who retire under the normal retivernent provisions and who have
completed at least 25 years of full time Connecticut service at retirement.

Disability Retirement: Bmployees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless
of length of service. Five years if credited service is required to be eligible for non-service
related disability. Disability benefits are calculated as 2% per years of service times the average
of the highest three years of pensionable salary, as defined perthe Plan, but not less than 15%,
nor more than 50%. In addition, disability benefits under this plan (without regard to cost-of-
living adjustments) plus any initial award of Social Security benefits and worket’s
compensation cannot exceed 75% of average annual salary. A plan member who leaves service
and has attained 10 years of service will be entitled to 100% of the accrued benefit as of the
date of termination of covered employment. Benefits are payable at age 60, and eatly
retirement reductions are based on the number of years of service the member would have had
if they had continued working until age 60.

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit: The plan also offers a lump-sum return of contributions with
interest or surviving spouse benefit depending on length of service.

Contributions

Per CGS 10-183z, contribution requirements of active employees and the State are amended
and certified by the Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. The contributions are
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions and
investment earnings, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits earned by employees
during the year, with any additional amounts to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

In accordance with CGS Section 10-183z, the Town does not and is not legally responsible to
contribute to the plan as a special funding situation exists that requires the State to contribute
100% of an employer’s contributions on-behalf of its participating mumnicipalities at an
actuarially determined rate. Bffective January 1, 2018, active employees are required to
contribute 7.0%, previously 6.0%, of their annual earnings to the plan.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative costs of the plan are funded by the State.
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NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)
Basis of Presentation

The collective net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and pension
expense for the TRS has been measured as of Jane 30, 2021 based on an actuarial valuation
performed as of June 30, 2021. Since the Town does not contribute directly to the TRS, the
Town does not recognize its proportionate share of these amounts in its financial statements.
The information determined as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date for the TRS has been
utilized by the Town for reporting on-behalf revenues, expenditures and expense for the year
ended June 30, 2021 and for reporting the proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability that is attributed to the Town as of June 30, 2021.

Alocation Methodology

The schedule of employer allocations for the TRS was caleulated based upon the fiscal year
2019 expected contribution effort for each participating employer. The employer allocations
were then applied to the net pension liability and pension expense to determine the amount
applicable to each employer. For the fiscal year 2021, the Town’s expected contribution effort
for allocation purposes totaled $4,185,391 or 0.335% of the total expected confribution effort.
The Town has recognized this amount as an on-behalf paymeént into the TRS as
intergovernmental revenues and related education expenditures of the General Fund for the
year ended June 30, 2021.

The components associated with the collective pension expense and deferred inflows and
outflows of resources for the TRS have been determined based on the fiduciary net position as
audited by the State of Connecticut Auditors of Public Accounts as part of the State of
Connecticut’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of and for the year ended June 30,
2021. The portion of the collective pension expense allocated to the Town totaled $4,185,391.
The Town has recognized this amount as an operating contribution and related education
expense of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022,

The total collective net pension liability of participating employers for the TRS was
approximately $14.926 billion as of June 30, 2021 measurement date. The portion attributed
to the Town totaled $49,984,323 or approximately 0.335% of the total collective net pension
lability.
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NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)
Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Tnflation 2.50%

Salary increases 3.00-6.50%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 6.90%, net of pension plan mvestment
expense, including inflation

Administrative expenses $0 assumption as expenses are paid
for by the General Assembly

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for males
and 103% for females as ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-2015 for the
period after service retirement.

Future cost-of-living increases for teachers who retired prior to September 1, 1992, are made
in accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3% and a
maximum of 5% per annum. For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement
System before July 1, 2007, and retire on or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit
adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on
January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 6% per annum, If the return on assets in the
previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.5%. For teachers who were
members of the Teachers’ Retirement System after July 1, 2007, pension benefit adjustments
are made that are consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on January of the
year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum. If the return on assets in the previous year
was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is 3%, and if the return on the return on assets in
the previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is 3%, and if the return on the
assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.0%.

Long-Term Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan mvestment expense and inflation) are developed
for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class included in the plan’s target asset allocation are summarized in the
following table:
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NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM ( CONTINUED)

Long-Term Rate of Return (Continued)

Long-term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Retum
Public Equity - US Equity 20.00% 5.60%
Public Equity - International Developed Equity 11.00% 6.00%
Public Bquity - Emerging Market Fquity 9.00% 7.90%
Fixed Income - Core Fixed Income 16.00% 2.10%
Fixed Income - Inflation Linked Bonds 5.00% 1.10%
Fixed Income - High Yield 6.00% 4.00%
Fred Income - Emergin Market Debt 5.00% 2.710%
Private Equity 10.00% 4.50%
Real Estate 10.00% 7.30%
Alternative Investments 7.00% 2.90%
Liquidity Fund 1.00% 0.40%

100.00%
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that the State contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 10 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net Pension Liability

The following presents the proportionate share of the collective net pension lability attributed
to the Town as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date, calculated using a discount rate of
6.90%, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability attributed to the
Town would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
(5.90%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.90%) than the current rate:

Cuarrent
1% Decrease Discount 194 Increase
5.90% 6.90% 7.90%

Town's proportionate share of the
State's total net pension liability $ 62,515,961 $49,984,323 § 39,580,491

NOTE 11 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
BoARD OF EDUCATION PLAN
Plan Administration

The Town of Plainfield Board of Education administers another post-employment benefits
program (the “OPEB Plan™), which is a single-employer defined benefit plan. The OPEB Plan
provides healthcare insurance benefits for eligible retirees and their spouses through the
Town’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Benefit
provisions are established through negotiations between the Board of Education and the union
representing Board of Education employees and are renegotiated each three-year bargaining
period. The OPEB Plan does not issuc a publicly available financial report and is not included
in the financial statements of another entity,
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NOTE I — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
BOARD OF EDUCATION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Plan Membership

Membership of the OPEB Plan consisted of the following as of July 1, 2020, the date of the
latest actuarial valuation:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 30
Active members 265
Total members 295
Contributions

Contribution requirements of the plan members and the Town are established by and may be
amended through negotiations between the Board of Education and the union. Currently, Board
of Education employees who are age 50 with 25 years of service, age 55 with 20 years of
service or age 60 with 10 years of service in the Plainfield School System are eligible to receive
benefits. Those who choose to participate must pay 100% of the premium cost. The Town
finances the Plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. Town contributions made to its Other Post-
Employment Benefits Trust Fund are based on an actuarially determined rate. Town
contributions totaled $96,862 for the year ended June 30, 2022 and represented .58% of
covered payroll.

Net OPEB Liability

The Town’s net OPEB liability reported as of June 30, 2022 totaled $6,465,118. The net OPERB

liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
July 1, 2020.
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NOTE 11 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
BOARD OF EDUCATION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net OPEB Liability (Continued)
Actuarial assumptions — The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 was determined using

the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Tnvestment rate of return 6.30%, net of investment-related expense
Inflation rate 2.40%
Salary increases 2.40%
Healthcare cost trend rate 6.50% initial
4.40% final

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Adjusted to 2006 Total Dataset Mortality Table
projected to valuation date with Scale MP-2018.

The long-term expected rate of returns on OPEB Plan investments were determined using a
building-block method in which best —estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of refurn
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for cach
major asset class included in the OPEB Plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Expected Real
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
Domestic equities 35.00% 4.95%
Foreign equities 25.00% 5.85%
Fixed incomme 35.00% 1.45%
Real estate 5.00% 3.95%

100.00%
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NOTE 11 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
BoARD 0F EDUCATION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Discount rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPER liability was 6.50%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rates assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rates and that the Town’s coniributions
will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rates of return on the OPEB Plan’s investments
were applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the OPEB Plan’s total
OPEB liability.

Changes in OPEB Liability

Increase {Decrease)
Total OPEB  Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability

Balance as of July 1, 2021 § 7,365,120 % 1,114,653 $§ 6,250,467
Changes for the year:

Service cost 76,164 o 76,164

Interest 482,265 e 482,265

Differences between expected and

actual experience (362,692) e (362,692)

Changes assumptions - - -

Contributions - employer - 96,862 (96,862)

Contributions - TR subsidy - 47,505 (47,505)

Net investment loss - (163,281) 163,281

Benefit payments, including refinds (44,367) (44,367) -
Net changes 151,370 (63,281) 214,651
Balance as of June 30, 2022 $ 1,516,490 § 1,051,372 § 6,465,118
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NOTE 11 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
BOARD OF EDUCATION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Changes in OPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate — The following presents
the Town’s net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan, calculated using the discount rate disclosed
above, as well as what the Town’s net OPEB liability would be for the OPEB Plan if it were
calculated using the discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.50%) or 1-percentage-
point highet (7.50%) than the current rate: '

Discount Rates
1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
5.50% 6.50% 7.50%
Net OPEB Liability - $ 7,244,846  $ 6,465,118  § 5,794,239

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates — The
following presents the Town’s net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan as well as what the
Town’s net OPER liability would be for the OPEB Plan if it were calculated using a health
care trend rate that is 1-percentage-point fower (3.40%) or I-percentage-point higher (5.40%)
than the current rate:

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
3.40% 4.40% 5.40%
Net OPEB Liability $ 5,695,009 § 6,465,118  §$ 7,370,271
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NOTE 11—~ OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
BOARD OF EDUCATION PLAN (CONTINUED)
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $43,306. At June

30,2022, the Town reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ 117,855 % -~
Changes of assumptions 700,046 (533,273)
Differences between expected and actual experience = (3,300,920)
Total $ 817,901  § (3,834,193)

Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2023 $ (391,613)
2024 (392,658)
2025 (397,481)
2026 (369,485)
2027 (417,273)
Thereafter (1,047,782)

$  (3,016,292)
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NOTE 11 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENERITS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Plan Description

The faculty and professional personne] of the Town’s Board of Education participates in the
State of Connecticut’s Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS”) which is a cost sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement, disability, survivorship and
health insurance benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The TRS is governed by
Connecticut General Statue (“CGS”) Title 10, Chapter 167a and is administered by the
Connecticut State Teachers’ Retivement Board (the “Board”). The OPEB trust fund is included
in the TRS, and the TRS is included in the State of Connecticut audit as a pension trust fund,

Benefit Provisions

The Plan covers retired teachers and administrators of public schools in the State who are
receiving benefits from the Plan. The Plan provides healthcare insurance benefits to eligible
retirees-and their spouses. Any member that is currently receiving a retirement or disability
through the Plan is eligible to participate in the healthcare portion of the Plan. Subsidized Local
School District Coverage provides a subsidy paid to members still receiving coverage through
their formet employer and the TRB Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans provide coverage
for those participating in Medicare, but not receiving Subsidized Local School District
Coverage.

Any member that is not currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to continue
health care coverage with their former employer. A subsidy of up to $110 per month for a
retired member plus an additional $110 per month for a spouse enrolled in a local school district
plan is provided to the school district to first offset the retiree’s share of the cost of coverage,
any remaining portion is used to offset the district’s cost. The subsidy amount is set by statute,
and has not increased since July of 1996. A subsidy amount of $220 per month may be paid
for a retired member, spouse or the surviving spouse of a member who has attained the normal
retirement age to participate in Medicare, is not eligible for Part A of Medicare without cost,
and contributes at least $220 per month towards coverage under a local school district plan.

Any member that is currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to either
continue health care coverage with their former employer, if offered, ot enroll in the plan
sponsored by the System. If they elect to remain in the plan with their former employer, the
same subsidies as above will be paid to offset the cost of coverage.
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NOTE 11 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM ( CONTINUED)
Benefit Provisions (Continued)

If a member participating in Medicare Parts A & B so elects, they may enroll in one of the
CTRB Sponsored Medicare Supplemental Plans. Active, members, retirees, and the State pay
equally toward the cost of the basic coverage (medical and prescription drug benefits).

Employees are cligible to retire at age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or
35 years of credited service including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Contributions

Per CGS 10-183z, which reflects Public Act 79-436 (as amended), contribution requirements
of active employers and the State of Connecticut are amended and certified by the TRB and
appropriated by the General Assembly. The State pays for one third of plan costs through and
annual appropriation in the General Fund. School district employers are not required fo make
contributions to the Plan.

The cost of providing plan benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis as follows: active
teachers’ pay for one third of the Plan costs through a contribution of 1.25% of their
pensionable salaries, and retired teachers pay for one third of the Plan costs through monthly
premiums, which helps reduce the cost of health insurance for eligible retired members and
dependents.

Contributions remitted by the State are recognized when legally due, based upon statutory
requirements.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative costs of the Plan are to be paid by the General Assembly per Section 10-183r
of the Connecticut General Statutes.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 11 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)
Basis of Presentation

The collective net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and OPEB
expense for the TRS has been measured as of June 30, 2021 based on an actuarial valuation
performed as of June 30, 2021. Since the Town does not contribute directly to the TRS, the
Town does not recognize its proportionate share of these amounts in its financial statements.
The information determined as of June 30, 2021 measurement date for the TRS has been
utilized by the Town for reporting on-behalf revenues, cxpenditures and expenses for the year
ended June 30, 2019 and for reporting the proportionate share of the collective net OPEB
liability that is attributed to the Town as of June 30, 2021.

The components associated with the OPEB expense and deferred inflows and outflows of
resources have been determined using the unrecognized portions of each year’s experience and
assumption changes for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Allocation Methodology

The schedule of allocations have been prepared to provide the total amount of employer
contributions from the State and the proportionate share percentages that have been determined
based on these contributions. Based on these percentages the proportionate share amounts of
the net OPER liability associated with each participating employers and the employer OPEB
expense and revenue for State support for each participating employer for the year ending June
30,2021. ‘ '

For fiscal year 2021, the Town’s expected contribution effort for allocation purposes totaled
$98.490 or 0.0335% of the total expected contribution effort. The Town has recognized this
amount as an on-behalf payment into the TRS as intergovernmental revenues and related
education expenditures of the General Fund for the year ended Tune 30, 2022.

The components associated with the collective OPEB expense and deferred inflows and
outflows of resources for the TRS have been determined based on the fiduciary net position as
audited by the State of Connecticut Auditors of Public Accounts as part of the State of
Connecticut’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of and for the year ended June 30,
2021. The portion of the collective OPEB expense allocated to the Town totaled $98,490. The
Town has recognized this amount as an operating contribution and related education expense
of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2022,
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 11 ~ OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

Allocation Methodology (Continued)

The total collective net OPEB liability of participating employers for the TRS was
approximately $1.626 billion as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date. The portion attributed
to the Town totaled $5,445,700 or approximately 0.335% of the total collective net OPER
liability.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 using
the following actvarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%
Real wage growth 0.50%
Wage inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 3.00%-6.50%, mcluding inflation
Investment rate of return 3.00%, net of investment related expense
Healthcare cost trend rates:

Medicare 5.125% fox 2020 decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.50% by 2023

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for males
and 103% for females as ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-2019 for the
period after service retirement,

Long-Term Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the actuarial
valuation process. Several factors are considered in evaluation of the long-term tate of return
assumption, including the Plan’s current asset allocations and a log-normal distribution
analysis using the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return,
net of investment expense and inflation) for each major asset class.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined by weighing the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The
assumption is not expected to change in the market that alters expected returns in the future
years. :
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 11 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)
Long-Term Rate of Return (Continued)

The target asset allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Treasuries (Cash Equivalents) 100.00% - ~0.42%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.21%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate was performed in accordance with the applicable
standards. The projection’s basis was an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020. In
addition to the actuarial methods and assumptions of the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation, the
following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the projection of cash flows:

e Total payroll for the initial projection year consists of the payroll of the active
membership present on the valuation date. In subsequent projection years, total payroll
was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.00%.

o Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the current member contribution
rate.

» Employee contributions for future plan members were used to reduce the estimated
amount of total service costs for future plan members.

o No future employer contributions were assumed to be made.

e For future plan members, contribution inflows were further reduced by the estimated
amount of total service costs for future plan members not financed by their member
contributions.

Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be depleted in

2022 and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the determination of the
single equivalent rate.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 11 -- OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM ( CONTINUED)
Proportionate Share of the Collective Net OPEB Liability

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The following presents
the proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability attributed to the Town as of the
June 30, 2021 measurement date, calculated using a discount rate of 2.21%, as well as what
the proportionate share of the net OPEB liability attributed to the Town would be if it were
caleulated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (1.21%) or 1-percentage —
point higher (3.21%) than the current rate: :

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Jncrease
1.21% 2.21% 3.21%
Town's proportionate share of the State's
total net OPEB liability $ 4,460,507 § 5445700 $ 4,509,096

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The
following presents the proportionate share of the collective net OPER Hability attributed to the
Town as of the June 30, 2021 measurement date, calculated using healthcare cost trend rafes
that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healtheare cost
frend rates:

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
i Trend Rates Trend Rates in Trend Rates

Town's proportionate share of the State's
total net OPER liability § 4448925 § 5445700 $ 6,823,004

NoTE 12 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction
of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees or acts of God. The Town purchases
commercial msurance for all risks of loss except health coverage. During 2022, deductibles
paid by the Town were insignificant. Neither the Town nor its insurers have settled any claims
which exceeded the Town’s insurance coverage during the past three years.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 12 — Risx MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

The Town is a member of the Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency (“CIRMA”),
a public entity tisk pool established for the purpose of administering an interlocal risk
management program pursuant to the provisions of Section 7-479a of Connecticut General
Statutes, for workers’ compensation coverage and liability-automobile-propexty pool. CIRMA
currently has 240 members in the workers compensation pool (of which 120 are mumnicipalities)
and 117 membeys in its liability —automobile-property pool (of which 37 are municipalities).
The Town pays an annual premium for its coverage. CIRMA is to be self-sustaining through
members’ premiums but reinsures in excess of $1,000,000 for eachinsured occutrence.
Membets may be subject to supplemental assessment in the event of deficiencies; however,
potential assessments are limited pursuant to the by-laws.

The Town is curtently a member of the Eastern Connecticut Health Insurance Program
(“BCHIP™), a cooperative formed in accordance with Public Act 10-174 of the Connecticut
Gieneral Statutes in order to self-insure medical and dental costs to the employees of its member
Towns and Boards of Education. Through this cooperative the Town accounts for and finances
employee medical benefit claims for eligible full-time employees of both the Town and the
Board of Education. The Town retains the risk of loss under the plan. A third party processes
the claims filed under the self-insured health plan, for which the Town is charged an
administrative fee. Through ECHIP, the Town has purchased a stop-loss policy for total claims
in any one year exceeding an aggregate of 120% of expected claims and for individual claims
exceeding $150,000 for combined hospital and major medical.

RECHIP establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of claims that have been incurred but
not reported at June 30, 2022. Claims liabilities are recorded if information prior to the issuance
of the financial statements indicates that it is possible that a liability has been incurred at the
date of the financial statements and the amount of possible loss can be reasonably estimated.
The amount of the claims accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claims, which
include past experience data, inflation and other future economic and societal factors and
incremental claim adjustment expense, net of estimated subrogation recoveries. The claims
accrual does not include other allocated or unallocated claims adjustment expenses.

A summary of the Town’s portion of claims activity for the years ended June 30, 2022, 2021
and 2020 are as follows:

Claims Payable, Claims and Claims Payable,
Year Ended Beginning Changes Claims End of
June 30, of Year in Hstimates Paid Year
2022 3 636,000 $ 9,045,161 § 8882161 § 799,000
2021 $ 413,000 $ 7,370,563 § 7,147,563 § 636,000

2020 $ 505,353  $ 7,294,206 $ 7,386,559 % 413,000
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 390, 2622

NOTE 13 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

The amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to andit and adjustment
by grantor agencies, principally the federal and state government. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this
time, although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

LITrc4ATIioN

The Town is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the
ordinary course of its operations, Claims covered by the risk management program are
reviewed and losses are accrued as required in the judgment of management. In the opinion of
management, based on the advice of legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of lawsuits and
claims will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Town.

NOTE 14 - ECONOMIC UNCERTAINTIES

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated
and voluntary closings of business across the country for noun-essential services. There is
considerable uncertainty about the duration of closings. The Town has been able to continue
most of its operations in a remote environment, however, at this point, the extent to which
COVID-19 may impact the Town’s financial condition or results of operatjons is uncertain.

NOTE 15 — RESTATEMENTS

The Town implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, resulting in the following
restatements:

Governmental
Activities General Fund

Net Position as originally stated at July 1, 2021 $ 62,937,377 § 1,125,970
Adoption of GASB statement 87
Lease Receivable 204,971 204,971
Deferred Inflow - Leases (204,971) (204,971)
Net Position at Tuly 1, 2021, as restated $ 62,937,377 § 1,125,970
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURE, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses, permits and fees
Tnterest
Out of town tuition
Other

Total Reventues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public works
Social services
Administration
Capital outlays
Education
Debt service

Total Expenditures

(Deficiency) Excess of Revenues

Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

WPCA. Bond Payment

Fund balance - school pension

Usage of School 2%
Fund balance usage

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Qriginal Final Actual Ower (Under)
29,114,557 29,114,557 20.761,831 § 647,274
15,794,168 15,794,168 15,882,454 88,286
705,357 705,357 1,291,816 586,459
20,000 20,000 50,478 30,478
941,752 941,752 847,082 (94,670)
705,484 705,484 805,088 100,204
47,281,318 47,281,318 48,639,349 1,358,031
3,722,961 3,722,961 3,546,117 (176,844)
2,673,999 2,673,999 2,932,512 258,513
1,564,080 1,564,080 1,507,811 (56,269)
560,869 560,869 567,750 6,881
1,367,565 1,367,565 1,328,354 (39,211)
1,094,932 1,094,032 964,647 (130,285)
35,993,861 35,993,861 35,763,157 (230,704)
1,788,544 1,788,544 1,788,544 o
48,766,811 48,766,811 48,398,892 (367,919
(1,485,493) (1,485,493) 240,457 1,725,950
205,571 205,571 205,571 --
200,000 200,000 e {200,000}
100,000 100,000 100,000 -~
979,922 979,922 -~ {979,922)
1,485,493 1,485,493 305,571 {1,179,522)
- -- 546,028 § 546,028

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCLES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL -~ BUDGETARY BASIS
GENERAL FUND

FFOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Property Taxes
Property taxes
Interest and len fees
Back taxes & interest

Total Property Taxes

Infergovernmental
Bducational equalization
Town aid road
Telephone access lines
Local capital improvements
Mohegar/Pequot grant
PILOT - State-owned property
PILOT - Hospitals
Reimbursement disability
PILOT - Veterans exemption
Distres/Enterptise Zone
MRSA. - Grant Municipal
Emergency Mgt, Asst.

Other state revenue

Total Intergovernmental Revenues

Licenses, Permits, and Fees
Poolreceipts
Building permits
Planning and zoning fees
Town clerk fees
Town clerk - copies
Police - other duty
F/M Services - Canterbury
Tovwn Hall rental

Cell Tower rental

Total Licenses, Permits and Fees

Budgeted Amounts

Variance With

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
$ 28,639,557 % 28,639,557 $ 29,016,524 § 376,967
175,000 175,000 316,128 141,128
300,000 300,000 429,179 129,179
29,114,557 29,114,557 29,761,831 647,274
14,990,047 14,990,047 14,979,760 (10,287)
290,093 290,093 289,022 (171)
37,943 37,943 32,234 (5,709)
123,317 123,317 - (123,317)
82,099 82,099 82,099 --
34,173 34,173 34,173 -
26,401 26,401 26,401 -
3,342 3,342 2,567 (7175)
5,465 5,465 5,381 84)
38,951 38,951 271,285 232,334
144,803 144,803 144,803 -~
7,534 7,534 7,538 4
10,000 10,000 6,291 (3,709)
15,794,168 15,754,168 15,882,454 88,286
100,000 100,000 83,680 (16,320)
175,000 175,000 548,980 373,980
40,135 40,135 49,413 9,278
280,000 280,000 475,702 195,702
14,000 14,000 21,163 7,163
55,000 55,000 64,523 9,523
5,872 5,872 3,915 (1,957)
2,500 2,500 10,357 7,857
32,850 32,850 34,083 1,233
705,357 705,357 1,291,816 586,459

3

The notes to the requived supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL — BUDGETARY BASIS (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Investment - Interest
Out of Town Tuition

Other
Tuition ~ special revenue
Other local revenue
Industrial park lot sales
Rental recreation

Police - miscellaneous revenue
Total Other

Total Revenues

Other Financing Sources
WPCA Bond Payment
Fund balance - School Pension
Usage of School 2%

Fund balance usage

Total Other Financing Sources

Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
20,000 20,000 50,478 30,478
941,752 941,752 847,082 (94,670)
512,484 512,484 466,945 (45,539)
113,000 113,000 145,657 32,657
50,000 50,000 180,438 130,438
10,000 10,000 -~ (10,000)
20,000 20,000 12,648 (7,352)
705,484 705,484 805,688 100,204
47,281,318 47,281,318 48,639,349 1,358,031
205,571 205,571 205,571 -
200,000 200,000 - (200,000)
100,000 100,000 100,000 -
979,922 979,922 - (979,922)
1,485,493 1,485,493 305,571 (1,179,922)
$ 48,766,811 $ 48,766,811 § 48,944920 § 178,109

The notes to the vequired supplementary information ave an integral pavt of this schedule.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
GENERAL FUND

General Government
First Selectman
Finance
Assessor
Tax Collector
Town Clerk
Election and registrars

Employee benefits
Total General Government

Public Safety
Fire Marshal
Police Department
Building Inspector
Planning and Engineering
Animal Control

Total Public Safety

Public Works
Building and grounds
Highway
Town Aid Road

Total Public Works

Social Services
Recreation
Libraries
Economic Development

Total Social Services

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
$ 156,436 § 156436 $ 153,671 §$ (2,765)
271,777 271,777 271,491 (286)
220,562 220,562 218,103 (2,459)
142,604 142,604 135,685 (6,919)
200,907 200,907 199,208 (1,699)
56,493 56,493 42,344 (14,149}
2,674,182 2,674,182 2,525,615 (148,567)
3,722,961 3,722,961 3,546,117 (176,844)
80,518 80,518 73,233 (7,285)
2,171,219 2,171,219 2,438,205 266,986
167,257 167,257 166,439 (818)
177,638 177,638 177,902 264
77,367 77,367 76,733 (634)
2,673,999 2,673,999 2,932,512 258,513
266,296 266,296 262,404 (3,892)
1,007,691 1,007,691 955,810 (51,881)
290,093 290,093 289,597 {(496)
1,564,080 1,564,080 1,507,811 (56,269)
415,919 415,919 429,927 14,008
67,650 67,650 60,523 (7,1277)
77,300 77,300 77,300 -~
560,869 560,869 567,750 6,381

The notes to the required supplementary information ave an integral part of this schedule.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL FUND

FOR THI YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Adminis tration
Telephone
Engineering firm
Lepal fees
Postage
Computer
Cormputer salary
Probate
Copy machines
Claims
Contingency
Tax refinds
Fireworks
US Flags on Pole in Town
Board and commissions
Purchased services

Contingency

Total Administration
Capital Outlays

Education

Debt Services
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Debt Sexvices

Total Expenditures

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Owver (Under)
$ 51,213 % 51,213 % 49,051 % (2,162)
120,000 120,000 145,972 25,972
130,000 130,000 120,427 (9,573)
26,000 26,000 23,369 (2,631)
356,234 356,234 348,080 (8,154)
41,647 41,647 s (41,647)
8,022 8,022 8,022 -
32,000 32,000 25,086 (6,914)
1,000 1,000 -- (1,000)
60,015 60,015 59,253 (762)
22,500 22,500 - 16,098 (6,402)
10,000 10,000 - (10,000)
- 500 500 s (500)
28,300 28,300 14,315 (13,985)
474,485 474,485 512,725 38,240
5,649 5,649 5.956 307
1,367,565 1,367,565 1,328,354 (39,211)
1,094,932 1,094,932 964,647 (130,285)
35,993,361 35,993,861 35,763,157 (230,704)
1,475,000 1,475,000 1,475,000 =
313,544 313,544 313,544 e
1,788,544 1,788,544 1,788,544 -
$ 48,766,811 § 48,766,811 3§ 48398892 § (367,919

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS — GENERAL FFUND

The Town adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in
the General Fund financial statements.

¢ Other than the Education Department, which submits estimates directly to the Board of
Finance, depariment heads submit their estimated budget to the Board of Selectmen, who
review and may revise the budget before submitting to the Board of Finance for review and
consideration. Expenditures are controlled at the department level.

s After one or more public hearings, the Board of Finance may revise the estimates for
presentation at the Annual Town Budget Meeting, or at a referendum if an increase in the
mill rate is proposed, which is held on the third Monday in May. The Town Meeting has
the power to accept or reject the budget.

¢ Should the Annual Town Budget Meeting or referendum fail to adopt the budget, another
meeting or referendum shall be held within fourteen days thereafter until final approval is
given. Any budget which has been rejected by the Town Meeting shall be considered in
the interim by the Board of Finance, which shall revise the rejected budget, and present a
revision at the next subsequent Town Meeting for acceptance. If the budget remains
unaccepted on July 1, the budget adopted for the immediately preceding fiscal year shall
be deemed to be the temporary budget for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, and
expenditures may be made on a month-to-month basis in accordance therewith, until such
time as the Town Meeting finally adopts a budget.

e The Board of Finance upon written request of the Board of Selectmen may transfer
unexpended balances from one appropriation to another in accordance with the General
Statutes.

e The Board of Education may transfer unexpended balances from one account to another
within its total [ine appropriation.

* Non-budgeted appropriations in excess of $10,000 require a Town Meeting to become
effective and non-budgeted appropriations in excess of $50,000 require a referendum.
During the year, no additional appropriations were authorized.

s Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management conirol device during the year.

e TheBudget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. “On-behalf” payments

made by the State of Connecticut into the State Teachers’ Retirement System are not -
recorded for budgetary purposes,
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE —
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS — GENERAL FUND (CONTINUED)

e FEncumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation
in the year in which the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and,
accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported in budgetary reports as
expenditures of the current year, Generally, all unexpended appropriations fapse at the
year-end, except those for the Capital Projects Funds and certain Special Revenue Funds.
Appropriations for capital projects ate continued until completion of applicable projects,
even when projects extend more than one fiscal year.

As described above, accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a
budgetary basis differ from those used to present financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP basis™). A
reconciliation of General Fund amounts presented on the budgetary basis to amounts presented
on the GAAP basis is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budgetary Basis $ 546,028
On behalf state pension contribution - revenue 4,283,881
On behalf state pension contribution - expenditures (4.233.881)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses - GAAP Basis $ 546,028
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 2 — SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
— CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS® RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Town began to report this schedule when it implemented GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No.
27, in fiscal year 2015. GASB Statement No. 68 requires the information within this schedule
to be presented for the ten most recent fiscal years.

Actuarial valuations are prepared every two years with the most recent available actuarial
valuation performed as of June 30, 2021, This information is utilized by the Town for reporting
as of June 30, 2021.

Benefit Changes — There have been no changes in benefit terms that have had a significant
effect on the measurement of the total pension liability.

Assumptions Changes — There have been no changes in assumptions that have had a significant
effect on the measurement of the total pension liability.

NOTE 3 — SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S NET PENSION LIABILITY — TOWN EMPLOYEE,
RETIREMENT PLAN

The Town began to report this schedule when it implemented GASB Statement No. 67,
Financial reporting for Pension Plans — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25 in fiscal
year 2014. GASB Statement No. 67 requires the measurement of the total pension liability.

Benefit Changes — There have been no changes in benefit terms that have had a significant
effect on the measurement of the total pension liability.’

Assumptions Changes — The following changes in assumptions were made in the current year
and may have had a significant effect on the measurement of the total pension liability:

o Inflation rate is assumed to be 2.40%, previously 2.50%
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

I'OR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 3 — SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS AND INVESTMENT RETURNS — TOWN EMPLOYERE
RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

The Town began to report this schedule when it implemented GASB Statement No. 67,
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25 in fiscal
year 2014, GASB Statement No. 67 requires the information within this schedule to be
presented for the ten most recent fiscal years.

Actuarial determined contribution rates are calculated as of July 1, two fiscal years prior to the
fiscal year in which contributions are reported. Actuarial contributions for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2022 were determined from the July [, 2020 valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age

Amortization method - Level Percentage of Salary
Remaining amortization period 10 Years

Asset valuation method Market Value

Inflation 2.40%

Investment tate of return 6.50%

Salary increases 2.00%

Retirement age Age 62 for Town Employees

Age 55 for Police

NOTE 4 — SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY —~ OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS PELAN

The Town began to report this schedule when it implemented GASB Statement No. 74,
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans other than Pension Plans, in fiscal year
2017. GASB Statement No. 74 requires the information within this schedule to be presented
for the ten most recent fiscal years.

The Town measures the total OPEB liability at the end of each fiscal year using the Entry Age
Normal Method.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 4 —~ SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS PLAN (CONTINUED)

Benefit Changes — There have been no changes in benefit terms that have had a significant
effect on the measurement of the total OPEB liability,

Assumption Changes — There have been no changes in assumptions that have had a significant
effect on the measurement of the total OPEB liability. -

The Town began to report this schedule when it implemented GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension in
fiscal year 2018. GASB Statement No. 67 requires the information within this schedule to be
presented for the ten most fiscal years.

The July 1, 2020 actuarial valuation directly calculated the July 1, 2020 total OPEB 'Lability.
The July 1, 2020 total OPEB liability was increased by service cost and interest and decreased
by benefit payments to estimate the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022.

The following methods and assumptions were utilized to determine the contribution rates for
the year ended June 30, 2022:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age
Amortization method Level percentage of Salary
Remaining amortization period 10 years
Asset valuation method Market Value
Inflation 2.40%
Investment rate of retin 6.30%
Tealthcare cost trend rates 6.50%, current
4.40%, final
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 5 - SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NiT OTHER POST-
EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITY -~ CONNECTICUT STATE TEACHERS’
RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Town began to report this schedule when it implemented GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension, in
fiscal year 2018. GASB Statement No. 75 requires the information within this schedule to be
presented for the ten most recent fiscal years.

Actuarial valuations are prepared every two years with the most recent available actuarial
valuation performed as of June 30, 2021. This information is utilized by the Town for reporting
as of June 30, 2021. ‘

Benefit Changes — Thete have been po changes in benefit terms that have had a significant
effect on the measurement of the total OPEB liability.

Assumption Changes — There have been no changes in asswmptions that have had a significant
~effect on the measurement of the total OPEB liability.
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

SCHEDULE, OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance With
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
Revenues _
Sewer use charges ' $ 2,241,918 § 2241918 § 2,243,844 § 1,926
Lien charges 500 500 1,156 656
Interest charges 12,000 12,000 20,298 8,298
Investment incoime - - 1,550 1,550
Sewer permits 100 100 160 60
Sewer assessments 20,000 20,000 30,422 10,422
Pre industrial treatment 120,000 120,000 183,115 63,115 -
Other 60,000 60,000 55,803 (4,197)
Total Revemnues 2,454,518 2,454,518 2,536,348 81,830
Expenditures _
Persomnel costs 1,213,508 1,213,508 995,731 217,777)
Administration 90,455 90,455 84,815 (5,640)
Operations 479,069 479,069 417,709 (61,360)
Utilities 203,240 203,240 194,504 (8,736)
Vehicles 37,820 37,820 31,220 (6,600)
Equipment replacement 84,600 84,600 78,697 (5,903)
Depreciation expense - -- 449,344 449,344
Debt service 345,826 345,826 118,646 (227,180)
Total Expend_itures 2,454‘,5 18 2,454,5 18 2,3 70,666 (83,852)
Excess (deficiency) revenues over expenditures - - 165,682 165,682
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in -- - 205,573 205,573
Total Other Financing Sources - -- 205,573 205,573
Change in net position $ ~ % - § 371255 § 371,255
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022
Pension OPEB
Trust Funds Trust Funds Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 382,327  § 102501 § 484,828
Investments:

Mutual finds 27.212.815 948,871 28,161,686
Total Assets $ 27,595,142 § 1051372 § 28,646,514
Nef Position

Held in trust for employee benefits $ 27595142 % 1,051,372 $ 28,646,514
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TOWN OF PLAINFIELD, CONNECTICUT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Pension OPEB
Trust Funds Trust Funds Total
Additions
Confributions:
Bmployer $ 1,072,000 § 96,862 § 1,168,862
Plan members 115,721 - 115,721
Other revenue - 47,505 47,505
Total Contributions 1,187,721 144,367 1,332,088
Tnvestment income (loss) (4,297,826) (163,281) (4,461,107)
Total Additions (3,110,105) (18914) _ (3,129,019)
Deductions
Benefit payments 1,614,246 44367 1,658,613
Administrative expenses 90,363 -~ 90,363
Total Deductions 1,704,609 44 367 1,748,976
Change in net position (4,814,714 (63,281) (4,877,995}
Net Position - Beginning 32,409,856 1,114,653 33,524,509
Net Position - Ending $ 27595142 § 1051372 $§ 28,646,514
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